Mandatory Fines – Set Amount

Table of Contents

TITLE 5 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES AND SERVICES	1
TITLE 7 AGRICULTURE AND ANIMALS	1
TITLE 9-B FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS	2
TITLE 10 COMMERCE AND TRADE	2
TITLE 12 CONSERVATION	3
TITLE 15 COURT PROCEDURE CRIMINAL	16
TITLE 17 CRIMES	
TITLE 17-A MAINE CRIMINAL CODE	
TITLE 20-A EDUCATION	17
TITLE 22 HEALTH AND WELFARE	
TITLE 23 TRANSPORTATION	17
TITLE 26 LABOR AND INDUSTRY	18
TITLE 28-A LIQUORS	18
TITLE 29-A MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC	19
TITLE 30-A MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES	20
TITLE 32 PROFESSIONS AND OCCUPATIONS	21
TITLE 38 WATERS AND NAVIGATION	21

Title 5 Administrative Procedures and Services

Chapter 2	Testimony Provided by State Employees to Legislative Committees
5§30	Willfully violating a State employee's right to present testimony and information
	to a legislative committee.
	\$10 per day, which may not be suspended.

Title 7 Agriculture and Animals

Chapter 103	Products Controlled
7 § 954-A	Misbranding, mislabeling or misrepresenting potatoes.
	\$1,000 minimum for each occurrence, plus
	not more than \$200 forfeiture for the first violation committed during a shipping
	season.
	\$1,000 forfeiture for a second violation committed during a shipping season, and
	\$1,500 minimum forfeiture for subsequent violations committed during a
	shipping season.
7 § 956	Refuse free access, ingress and egress where potatoes are packed, stored,
-	transported, sold, offered or exposed for sale or for transportation.

Not more than \$200 forfeiture for the first violation committed during a shipping season.

\$1,000 forfeiture for a second violation committed during a shipping season.\$1,500 minimum forfeiture for subsequent violations committed during a shipping season.

<u>Chapter 717</u> <u>Animal Welfare Act</u>

7 § 3911-A Abandon a wolf hybrid not licensed under section 3922. \$1,000 fine.

Chapter 741 Animal Trespass

7 § 4041
 Owner or keeper of an animal found trespassing, failing to remove the animal within 12 hours after having been personally notified by an animal control officer or law enforcement officer that the animal was trespassing, or animal or animals owned by person having been found trespassing on 5 or more days within a 30-day period, or 3 or more days within a 7-day period.
 \$50-\$500 fine for first violation;
 \$1,000 for second violation;
 \$2,500 for 2 or more violations.

Title 9-B Financial Institutions

<u>Chapter 46</u> 9-B § 466	<u>Prohibitions</u> Failure of institution to furnish reports. \$100 per day of each violation.
<u>Chapter 101</u> 9-B § 1013	Financial Institution Holding Companies Violating requirements of subsection 3, which require financial institution holding companies to obtain prior approval of the superintendent to establish, acquire or maintain control of a Maine financial institution. \$1,000 per day for each day the violation continues.
9-B § 1019	A financial institution holding company violating a provision of this chapter. \$1,000 per day for each day the violation continues.

Title 10 Commerce and Trade

<u>Chapter 201</u>	Monopolies and Profiteering
10 § 1104	Violation of sections 1101, 1102, or 1102-A
	Civil Penalty of \$50,000 for each violation of the terms of an injunction issued
	under this section.
	Plaintiff shall recover three times the amount of the damages sustained.

Chapter 501 Weights and Measures Law

10 § 2702 Person, firm or corporation for whom scales, weights and measures or any weighing or measuring devices have been tested by a local sealer of weights and measures neglecting or refusing to pay for the services rendered.
 <u>\$3 plus costs for the first offense.</u>
 \$10-\$20 plus costs for each subsequent offense.

Title 12 Conservation

Part 9	Marine Resources
Chapter 605	General Department Activities
12 § 6140-B	Unlawful possession of any part of Atlantic salmon taken from the inland or
	coastal waters of this state
	\$500 for each Atlantic salmon unlawfully possessed.
Chapter 619	Lobster and Crab Fishing Licenses
12 § 6431	Possession of lobsters in violation of this section.
	\$500 fine plus \$100 for each lobster involved, up to and including the first 5,
	\$200 for each lobster in excess of 5, or \$1,000-\$5,000 for an indeterminable
	number of lobsters.
12 § 6431-B	Violation of tag system rule if 25 or fewer traps are not tagged in accordance
	with rules adopted pursuant to subsection 1.
	Mandatory fine of \$250 if the person fishes 25 or fewer traps that are not tagged.
12 § 6432	Possession of lobsters other than caught by the method specified in subsection 1.
	\$500 fine plus \$100 for each lobster involved, up to and including the first 5,
	\$200 for each lobster in excess of 5, or \$1,000-\$5,000 for an indeterminable
	number of lobsters
12 § 6436	Penalty for possession of egg-bearing lobsters.
	\$1,000 fine plus \$200 for each lobster involved, up to and including the first 5,
	\$400 for each lobster in excess of 5, or \$2,500-\$10,000 for an indeterminable
	number of lobsters
	Penalty for possession of v-notched lobsters.
	\$500 fine plus \$100 for each lobster involved, up to and including the first 5,
	\$400 for each lobster in excess of 5, or \$1,000-\$5,000 for an indeterminable
	number of lobsters
12 § 6438-A	Remove extruded eggs from female lobster or take, buy, sell, possess, transport
	or ship any female lobster from which extruded eggs have been removed.

\$1,000 fine plus \$300 for each lobster involved or, if an indeterminable number of lobsters. Mandatory fine of \$1000 for each violation, \$300 for each lobster involved, or if the number of lobsters cannot be determined, a fine of not less

than \$1,000-\$5,000.

Chapter 621 **Finfish Licenses**

12 § 6505-A

Fish for or take elvers or possess, ship, transport or sell elvers that the person has taken without a resident or nonresident elver fishing license for one device or two devices, or without a resident or nonresident elver fishing license with crew for one device or two devices. \$2,000 strict liability

Elver fishing license holder engaging unlicensed crew to assist in activities not authorized by rule \$2,000 strict liability

Elver fishing license holder engaging unlicensed crew to assist in activities not under direct supervision of the license holder \$2,000 strict liability

Person licensed under Title 12 §§ 6302-A(3) or 6505-A selling or transferring elvers to elver dealer without presenting elver transaction card so amount of elvers transferred is not deducted from license holder's quota. \$2,000 strict liability

Possessing elver transaction card not issued to that person or while not licensed to fish elvers.

\$2,000 strict liability

Fish for or take elvers by person who is under 15 years of age. \$2,000 strict liability

12 § 6505-B Submerge an elver fyke net or Sheldon eel trap in the waters of the State to fish for or take elvers unless the net or trap owner pays the annual fees, or in coast waters of the State to fish for or take elvers unless a tag issued by the department is affixed to the shoreside wing of the net or trap and is clearly visible.

\$2,000 strict liability.

Utilize a dip net to fish for or take elvers without paying a fee of \$50 per dip net annually.

\$2,000 strict liability.

12 § 6575	Designate or claim by any means a location in which to set an elver fyke net or a Sheldon eel trap at any time other than the open season for elver fishing. A fine of \$2,000 must be imposed, none of which may be suspended.
12 § 6575-D	Utilize, transfer, alter, possess or in any manner handle an elver fyke net unless that person has been a license to fish for elvers with an elver fyke net or a license to fish for elvers with crew with an elver fyke net and the license holder issued the tag is present and assisting. \$2,000 strict liability.
12 § 6575-G	Elver fishing within 150 feet of dam with fishway or of fishway. \$2,000 strict liability
12 § 6575-H	Sale of elvers to a person who is not a licensed elver dealer, or is not an authorized representative of a licensed elver dealer. \$2,000 strict liability
	Accepting payment for elvers in any form other than a check or cashier's check that identifies both the seller and the buyer by whom the landings will be reported, each of whom must be licensed \$2,000 strict liability
12 § 6575-К	Possessing or selling a weight of elvers that exceeds the elver individual fishing quota that person has been allocated for the fishing season. \$2,000 strict liability
	Fishing for or possessing elvers or failing to remove tagged gear after the person has sold a weight of elvers that meets or exceeds that person's elver individual fishing quota. \$2,000 strict liability
Chapter 623	Shellfish, Scallops, Worms and Miscellaneous Licenses
12 § 6626	Violating scallop conservation area rule. \$1,000 for the first offense and all scallops on board may be seized.
12 § 6701	Hand fishing scallops without current hand fishing scallop license. \$750
12 § 6702	Using a boat for dragging for scallops without a license. \$500 for first offense \$750 for subsequent offenses
12 § 6703	Engaging in noncommercial scallop fishing without a license \$500 for first offense

\$750 for subsequent offenses

12 § 6721-A	Possess, ship, transport, buy or sell scallops less than minimum size.
	\$500 for first offense
	\$750 for subsequent offenses

- 12 § 6722 A person may not fish or take scallops by dragging in the territorial waters from April 16th to November 30th, both days inclusive.
 \$500 for first offense
 \$750 for subsequent offenses
- 12 § 6724 A person may not fish for or take scallops by use of an otter trawl and upriver of a line drawn from the lighthouse on Dice Head, Castine to Turtle Head on Islesboro and thence to the town wharf at Bayside, Northport.
 \$500 for first offense
 \$750 for subsequent offenses
- 12 § 6725 Possessing, shipping, transporting, buying or selling scallops taken in violation of scallop laws.
 \$500 for first offense
 \$750 for subsequent offenses
- 12 § 6726 Unlawfully utilize a drag to fish for or take scallops in the territorial waters with rings that measure to small.
 \$500 for first offense
 \$750 for subsequent offenses
- 12 § 6728 Fish for, take or possess more than 15 gallons of scallop meat per day in the coastal waters.
 \$500 for first offense
 \$750 for subsequent offenses
- 12 § 6728-C Taking scallops by dragging in a dive-only area.\$500 for first offense\$750 for subsequent offenses

Chapter 625 Wholesale and Retail Licenses

12 § 6864 Failure of elver dealer licensed under section 6864 to have access to an operational Internet connection when using an elver dealer transaction card to buy, sell or transport elvers. \$2,000

12 § 6865 Failure of elver exporter licensed under section 6865 to have access to an operational Internet connection when using an elver dealer transaction card to buy or sell elvers.
 \$2,000

Chapter 627 General Prohibitions

12 § 6952-A Fish for or take lobsters by use of an otter or beam trawl, a scallop drag or trawl, seine or net \$100 per first 5 lobsters, \$200 per lobster in excess of 5, \$1,000-\$5,000 if indeterminable number of lobsters

> Possess lobsters, regardless of their source, on board any boat rigged for dragging, trawling, dredging, seining or netting. \$100 per first 5 lobsters, \$200 per lobster in excess of 5, \$1,000-\$5,000 if indeterminable number of lobsters

12 § 6954-C Fishing in the territorial waters northerly and inshore of the international bridge connecting Lubec to Campobello Island, New Brunswick, Canada with any drag or combination of drags that measure in excess of 5 feet, 6 inches in width.
 \$500 for first violation
 \$750 for subsequent violations

Part 11 Forestry

Subpart 4 Fish and Wildlife

Chapter 913 General License and Permit Provisions

- 12 § 11155 Hunt or possess wild turkey without a valid permit issued under this section.
 \$500 minimum for each day in violation and <u>\$500 for each turkey</u>.
 Plus \$1,000 if in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device.
- 12 § 11201 Hunt or possess a bear, deer, moose, or wild turkey during the closed season while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

Hunt or possess a wild turkey during the closed season. \$500 minimum plus \$500 for each wild turkey unlawfully possessed.

- 12 § 11205 Hunt wild animals or wild birds on Sunday or possess any wild animal or wild bird taken on Sunday while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11206 While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, hunt wild birds or wild animals from 30 minutes after sunset to 30 minutes before sunrise of the following day or possess any wild animal or wild bird taken at night.

\$1,000 minimum

Plus \$1,000 if in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, shoot at any wild animal or wild bird from any public paved way or within 10 feet of the edge of the pavement of the public paved way or from within the right-of-way of any controlled access highway; or possess any wild animal or wild bird taken in this manner.

\$1,000

- 12 § 11209 While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, discharging a firearm including a muzzle-loading firearm or causing a projectile to pass as a result of that discharge within 100 yards of a building or residential dwelling without the permission of the owner or, in the owner's absence, of an adult occupant of that dwelling. \$1,000
- 12 § 11210 Intentionally, knowingly, recklessly or negligently shooting and wounding or killing any domestic animal, including, but not limited to, a dog, cat or domestic bird while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11211 Use any firearm other than a shotgun in the Town of Southport or the islands within the confines of the Town of Southport, after having been adjudicated of having committed 3 or more civil violations under this part within the previous 5year period and while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11214 Use for hunting or possess for hunting any automatic firearm while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device.\$1,000

Use for hunting or possess for hunting any autoloading firearm having a magazine capacity of more than 5 cartridges while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

Use for hunting or possess for hunting any firearm fitted or contrived with device for deadening the sound of explosion while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

Hunt migratory game birds with a shotgun of any description originally capable of holding more than 3 shells while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device.

\$1,000

Hunt a wild animal or wild bird by any method other than by the usual method of shooting with a firearm not larger than number 10-gauge or shooting with a hand-held bow and arrow or by falconry while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

12 § 11217 Sell or possess for sale a wild bird. \$1,000

- 12 § 11219 Hunt on a state game farm after having been adjudicated of having committed 3 or more civil violations under this part within the previous 5-year period and while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11220 Hunt in a licensed wildlife exhibit after having been adjudicated of having committed 3 or more civil violations under this part within the previous 5-year period and while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11222 Hunter shooting at a target without, at that point in time, being certain that it is the wild animal or wild bird sought while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11227 Placing bait or hunting over bait without the oral or written permission of the landowner or the landowner's agent after having been adjudicated as having committed 3 or more civil violations under Title 12, part 13 within the previous 5year period and while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

Hunting at a bait site established by another person without permission after having been adjudicated as having committed 3 or more civil violations under this part within the previous 5 year period and while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

12 § 11228 Using a dog to hunt coyotes during the period from 30 minutes after sunset to 30 minutes before sunrise while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device.
 \$1,000

12 § 11301	Hunting, molesting, or harassing bears within 50 yards of a bait site established by another person without the written permission of that person and while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
12 § 11304	Kill or wound a bear that is treed or held at bay by another person's dog or dogs without the permission of the person conducting the hunt while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
12 § 11305	While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, using a .17 or .22 caliber rimfire firearm or shotgun using shot loads to hunt bears. \$1,000
12 § 11351	While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, hunt or trap bear after that person has killed or registered one during any open season. \$1,000 minimum Plus \$1,000 if in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device.
12 § 11403	While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, carry firearms of any kind while hunting any species of wildlife with bow and arrow during the special archery season on deer. \$1,000
12 § 11452	Hunt from an observation stand or blind overlooking salt, grain, fruit, nuts or other foods known to be attractive to deer while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
12 § 11453	Participating in a hunt for deer during which an organized or planned effort is made to drive deer while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
12 § 11454	While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, hunting deer with any firearms using a .17 or .22 caliber rimfire cartridge, except .22 caliber rimfire magnum cartridge, after having been adjudicated of having committed 3 or more civil violations under this Part within the previous 5-year period. \$1,000
12 § 11601	While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, hunting moose with a permittee unless that person is a subpermittee authorized in accordance with this section. \$1,000

- 12 § 11602 Participating in a hunt for moose during which an organized or planned effort is made to drive moose while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11603 Using a .17 or .22 caliber rimfire firearm or a shotgun using shot loads to hunt moose after having been adjudicated as having committed 3 or more civil violations under this part within the previous 5-year period and while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11605 From September 1st to December 15th, placing salt or any other bait or food in a place to entice moose to that place while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

From September 1st to December 15th, hunting from an observation stand or blind overlooking salt, grain, fruit, nuts or other foods known to be attractive to moose while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

- 12 § 11751-A Hunt wild turkey after that person has killed or registered the maximum number of wild turkey allowed by rule during that season.
 \$500 minimum plus \$500 per turkey.
 Plus \$1,000 if in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device.
- 12 § 11801 Employ the use of a dog or dogs in any manner while hunting wild turkeys while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device.\$1,000

Engage in an organized drive of any manner while hunting wild turkeys while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

12 § 11802 From September 1st to December 15th, placing any bait or food in a place to entice a wild turkey to that place while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device.
\$1,000

> From September 1st to December 15th, hunting from an observation stand or blind overlooking bait or food known to be attractive to wild turkey while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device.

\$1,000

- 12 § 11851 Hunt a wild bird, other than the English or European house sparrow and the European starling, except as provided in this part, while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11855 Hunt migratory game birds while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 11857 Taking more than the daily bag limit of ruffed grouse as established by the Commissioner while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000
- 12 § 12001 While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, hunt coyotes at night without possessing an electronic, hand-held or mouth-operated predator calling device. \$1,000
- 12 § 12052Engage in dog training without a valid license issued under this section.\$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable license fee.
- 12 § 12101 Charge others for the opportunity to hunt mallard ducks, pheasants, quail, Chukar partridge and Hungarian partridge in an area or establish a commercial shooting area for such purposes without a valid license issued under this section. \$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable license fee.
- 12 § 12152 Importing wildlife into or possessing wildlife in the State or receiving or possessing wildlife imported into the State without a permit. \$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable license fee.
- 12 § 12156 Release into the wild captive, raised or imported wild birds or wild animals unless that person has a valid permit issued under this section.
 \$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable license fee.
- 12 § 12157 Take or transport within the limits of the State wildlife taken in the State for breeding or advertising purposes without a valid permit issued under this section.
 \$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable license fee.

Chapter 917 Trapping

12 § 12201Trap without a valid license issued under this section.\$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable license fee.

12 § 12260	While in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device, catch a bear in
	a trap and cause or allow another person to kill or register that bear.
	\$1,000

Chapter 921 Wildlife Causing Damage or Nuisance

12 § 12404 Take or kill wild birds, with the exception of English or European house sparrows, European starlings, rock pigeons, aka rock doves, and wild turkeys under section 12401 and 12402 while in possession of a firearm with a noise suppression device. \$1,000

Chapter 923 Fish: Fishing Seasons and Restrictions

- 12 § 12457Fish in inland waters closed to fishing as described in this section.\$20
- 12 § 12501 Fish for, transport or possess fish without a valid license issued under this section.

\$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable license fee.

- 12 § 12504 Conduct a fishing derby or fishing tournament without a valid permit issued under this section.
 \$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable permit fee.
- 12 § 12505 Conduct a bass tournament in waters free of ice without a permit issued under this section.

\$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable permit fee.

- 12 § 12506 Fish or possess eel, sucker, lamprey, or yellow perch without a permit issued under this section.\$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable permit fee.
- 12 § 12507 Cultivate or sell fish that have been commercially grown within the State or imported from outside the State without a valid license issued under this section. \$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable license fee.
- 12 § 12508 Person owning private pond charging others for the opportunity to fish in that private pond without possessing a valid private fee pond license issued by the commissioner under this section.
 \$50 plus an amount equal to twice the applicable license fee.
- 12 § 12553 Sell or offer for sale fish as bait for the purpose of fishing except as provided in this subsection and for baitfish as defined in section 10001, subsection 6.
 \$20

	Use or possess fish as bait for the purpose of fishing except as provided in this subsection and for baitfish as defined in section 10001, subsection 6. \$20
12 § 12554	Disturb or take any bait fish trap or bait fish holding box or any fish from any bait fish trap or bait fish holding box other than that person's own without the consent of the owner of the bait fish trap or bait fish holding box. \$20
12 § 12556	Import into this State any live fish, including smelts, that are commonly used for bait fishing in inland waters. \$20
12 § 12602	Fish in violation of the number, amount, weight or size limits established by rules by the commissioner. \$20 per fish or \$20 per quart for violation of smelt limits.
	Possess fish in violation of the number, amount, weight or size limits established by rules by the commissioner. \$20 per fish or \$20 per quart for violation of smelt limits.
12 § 12604	Fish for any fish during the closed season or possess any fish taken during the closed season on that fish. \$20 per fish
12 § 12606	Ice fish in inland waters closed to ice fishing. \$20 per fish
12 § 12607	Introduce fish or fish spawn raised by the department into a private pond. \$20 per fish
12 § 12609-A	Directly or indirectly purchase or sell black bass, landlocked salmon, pickerel, togue, trout or white perch. \$20 per fish
12 § 12651	Fish by snagging. \$20 per fish
12 § 12653	Use dynamite or any other explosive, poisonous or stupefying substance at any time for the purpose of taking or destroying any kind of fish. \$20 per fish
12 § 12654	Angle or fish other than by the use of the single baited hook and line, artificial flies, artificial lures and spinners.

\$20 per fish

12 § 12656 Possess any grapnel, trawl, weir, seine, gill net or trap or set line on or adjacent to any of the inland waters of the State. \$20 per fish

> Use any grapnel, spear, spear gun, trawl, weir, gaff, seine, gill net, trap or set lines for fishing. \$20 per fish

Chapter 925 Fish and Wildlife Management and Research

12 § 12808 Negligently possess, process, sell, offer for sale, deliver, carry, transport or ship, by any means whatsoever, any endangered or threatened species or any part of an endangered or threatened species.
 \$1,000

Negligently feed or set bait for any endangered or threatened species. \$1,000

Intentionally import into the State or export out of the State any endangered or threatened species. \$2,000

Intentionally hunt, take, trap, harass or possess any endangered or threatened species within the State. \$2,000

Intentionally possess, process, sell, offer for sale, deliver, carry, transport or ship, by any means whatsoever, any endangered or threatened species or any part of an endangered or threatened species. \$2,000

Intentionally feed or set bait for any endangered or threatened species. \$2,000

12 § 12810 Import into the State or export out of the State a delisted species. \$2,000

Hunt, trap, harass or possess a delisted species with the State. \$2,000

Process, sell, offer for sale, deliver, carry, transport or ship, by any means whatsoever, a delisted species or any part of a delisted species. \$2,000

Chapter 927 Guides and Youth Camp Trip Leaders

12 § 12853Act as a guide without a valid license under this chapter.\$1,000

Title 15 Court Procedure Criminal

Chapter 17	Miscellaneous Provisions
15 § 455-A	Commercial retail sales outlet selling firearms and failing to post firearm warning. \$200 civil forfeiture.

Title 17 Crimes

Fraud and False Pretenses
Undertakes to do business or does business of any kind in behalf of any corporation, the charter of which has been forfeited or suspended. \$300
Salvia Divinorum
Possession of Salvia divinorum by minor with 2 or more prior adjudications for possession of Salvia divinorum.

\$500, which may not be suspended.

17 § 2014 Minor offers false identification in an attempt to purchase Salvia divinorum with 2 or more prior adjudications for such conduct. \$500, which may not be suspended.

Chapter 105Religious Assemblies, Holy Days and Holidays17 § 3205Engage in or attend outdoor recreational or competitive amateur sport or game
on Sunday in violation of town ordinance.
\$5 fine.

Title 17-A Maine Criminal Code

Chapter 39Unlawful Gambling17-A § 954Intentionally or knowingly advances or profits from unlawful gambling activity.
All income associated with violation.

Under 21 years of age and play a slot machine. All income associated with violation.

Chapter 45 Drugs

17-A § 1111-A Use drug paraphernalia to plant, propagate, cultivate, grow, harvest, manufacture, compound, convert, produce, process, prepare, test, analyze, pack, repack, store, contain, conceal, inject, ingest, inhale or otherwise introduce into the human body a scheduled drug in violation of this chapter or Title 22, section 2383 (Possession of marijuana).
 \$300

Possess with intent to use drug paraphernalia to plant, propagate, cultivate, grow, harvest, manufacture, compound, convert, produce, process, prepare, test, analyze, pack, repack, store, contain, conceal, inject, ingest, inhale or otherwise introduce into the human body a scheduled drug in violation of this chapter or Title 22, section 2383 (Possession of marijuana). \$300

Title 20-A Education

Part 3	Elementary and Secondary Education
Chapter 225	<u>Penalties</u>
20-A § 6806	Deface, damage or destroy the walls, benches, seats, blackboards or other parts of a schoolhouse or school outbuilding. Violator shall pay double the damages.

Title 22 Health and Welfare

Part 3	Public Health
Chapter 262-A	Retail Tobacco Sales
22 § 1555-В	5-C Person under 21 years of age offering false identification in an attempt to purchase a tobacco product after having previously violated this subsection 2 or more times.\$500 fine, which may not be suspended.

Title 23 Transportation

<u>Part 3</u>	Local Highway Law
Chapter 31	General Provisions
23 § 2851	Violating restriction placed by municipal officers, designating public streets, roads or sidewalks whereon people may slide with any vehicle. \$5 fine.

Part 7 Railroads

Chapter 611 Safety Provisions

23 § 7008 Failure to post a copy of section 7007 in a conspicuous place in every railroad passenger station.
 \$100 for every offense.

Title 26 Labor and Industry

Chapter 7	Employment Practices
26 § 631	Employer failing to provide employee with copy of personnel file without good cause. \$25 civil forfeiture for each day, not to exceed \$500.
26 § 839	Failing to prominently post notice of employee protections and obligations. \$10 for each day of willful violation, which shall not be suspended.

Title 28-A Liquors

Part 3	Licenses for Sale of Liquor
Chapter 29	License Restrictions
28-A § 714	Possessing an unlabeled keg purchased in Maine. \$500 Forfeiture

Part 6 Prohibited Acts and Penalties

Chapter 81 Prohibited Acts by Minors

28-A §2051 Minor purchasing, consuming, having on the minor's person liquor or imitation liquor, including having on the minor's person liquor or imitation liquor in any premises licensed for the sale of liquor to be consumed on the premises.

Minor presenting or offering to a licensee, the licensee's agent or employee written or oral evidence of age that is false, fraudulent or not actually the minor's own, for the purpose of ordering, purchasing, attempting to purchase or other procuring or attempting to procure the serving of any liquor or imitation liquor.

Minor having in the minor's possession a false identification card, or selling, furnishing or giving a false identification card to a minor.

Minor having in the minor's possession equipment specifically constructed, manufactured or marketed for the purpose of brewing malt liquor or fermenting or making wine.

\$600 fine for subsequent violations after the second violation, or community service in lieu of fine.

Chapter 83 Prohibited Acts in General

28-A § 2078 Selling liquor in Maine without a valid license.

\$1,000 plus costs for subsequent offenses after the second offense.

Note: fines and costs may not be suspended.

Title 29-A Motor Vehicles and Traffic

<u>Chapter 19</u> 29-A § 2075	Operation Operating vehicle 1-15 miles per hour over restricted speed limit in construction or maintenance area. Twice the amount designated by the Chief Judge for violation of similar provision in section 2073.
	Operating vehicle 16-25 miles per hour over restricted speed limit in construction or maintenance area. Twice the amount designated by the Chief Judge for violation of similar provision in section 2073.
	Operating vehicle 26-29 miles per hour over restricted speed limit in construction or maintenance area. Twice the amount designated by the Chief Judge for violation of similar provision in section 2073.
29-A § 2081	Children under 40 pounds - for failing to properly secure a child under 40 pounds in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions in child safety seat.
	\$50 for first offense
	\$125 for second offense
	\$250 for subsequent offenses Note: fines imposed by this subsection may not be suspended.
	Note. Thes imposed by this subsection may not be suspended.
	Use of safety seat belts; Passengers less than 18 years of age - for failing to be equipped with seat belts while riding in a vehicle and under the age of 18.
	\$50 for first offense
	\$125 for second offense
	\$250 for subsequent offenses
	Note: fines imposed by this subsection may not be suspended.
	Passenger 18 years of age or older not using safety belts. \$50 for first offense
	\$125 for second offense
	\$250 for subsequent offenses
	Note: Constructed by the construction and by a second of

Note: fines imposed by this subsection may not be suspended.

Chapter 21 Weight, Dimension and Protection of Ways

29-A § 2395 Violating the restriction of weight or passage of a vehicle over any way when such passage is unsafe or likely to cause excessive damage to the way or bridge.
 \$250 fine, which may not be suspended.

Chapter 23 Major Offenses – Suspension and Revocation

29-A § 2411 Operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, an intoxicant, or while having an alcohol level of 0.08 grams or more of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or 210 liters of breath.

Operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, an intoxicant, or while having an alcohol level of 0.08 grams or more of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or 210 liters of breath and failing to submit to a test at the request of a law enforcement officer.

Operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of drug(s) or a combination of drug(s) and alcohol.

Operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of drug(s) or a combination of drug(s) and alcohol and failing to submit to a test at the request of a law enforcement officer.

Violating the above paragraphs and in fact causing serious bodily injury to another person.

Violating the above paragraphs and in fact causing the death of another person or with a prior conviction for a Class B or Class C crime under this section or a prior criminal homicide conviction involving or resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs or with an alcohol level of 0.08 grams or more of alcohol per 100 milliliters of blood or 210 liters of breath.

Surcharge of \$30 for conviction under this section. Surcharge of \$125 if the person operated or attempted to operate a motor vehicle under the influence of drugs or a combination of liquor and drugs.

Title 30-A Municipalities and Counties

Part 2MunicipalitiesChapter 183Economic Regulation

30-A § 3778 Violating Scrap Metal Processors regulations.
\$1,000
\$3,000 after one prior adjudication of this subchapter.
\$4,500 after 2 or more adjudications of this subchapter.

Title 32 Professions and Occupations

Chapter 125Employee Leasing Companies32 § 14058Employing leasing company violation.
\$100 per day

Title 38 Waters and Navigation

Chapter 1Operation of Vessels38 § 124Any person who takes any stone or other ballast from any island, beach or
other land, without consent of the owner.
\$7